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ON THE COVER: Boats dot the Intracoastal Waterway, awaiting the drawbridge signal on the Cortez Bridge.

If there is one thing that is constant, it is change. Science tells us that the barrier islands along our coast formed about 4,000 years ago. 
Since that time, they have been constantly shifting, changing, and evolving. The barrier islands of our coast are in constant flux. 
These changes come from forces of nature like hurricanes, no-name storms, and king tides. They also come from waterfront 
inhabitants. The Calusa and Tocobaga left behind shell mounds. Cuban fishermen constructed ranchos. 

Pioneer settlers, like George Emerson Bean, created homesteads with cabins and wells beginning in 1893. Bean’s son, Will Bean, 
together with investor Charles M. Roser, planned and built streets, sidewalks and a water system. They also built a pier at the end of 
Pine Avenue on Anna Maria Island, which would welcome day-trippers via steam boats to the newly constructed bath house directly 
east on the Gulf-side beach.   Other land-boom developers would soon follow in the 1920s. They constructed more bathhouses, 
diving platforms, and piers for public enjoyment. Eventually wooden bridges connected the barrier islands of Anna Maria and Long 
Beach, as Longboat Key was formerly known, to the mainland. During World War II, pilots from McDill Air Force Base used Mullet 
Key, Passage Key, and parts of Longboat Key for target practice. In the post-war era, motels and mobile home parks welcomed 
snowbirds. Modern draw-span bridges would arrive in the 1950s, as did new restaurants, entertainment venues, and shopping 
centers. Anna Maria Island was even used as a filming site for the movie industry. The 1960s brought surf culture, hurricanes Alma 
and Donna, tidal waves that eroded the beaches, and efforts to mitigate the erosion by placing rock bulwarks along the shore. In the 
1990s, more advanced beach nourishment efforts would again shift the coastline. 

As you can see, each era of inhabitants affects the waterfront with the ways they use the water, the land, and the things they build. We 
can see the evidence in our stories, maps, structures, and especially in photographs. These records bear testament as each generation 
of “old-timers” recounts fondly what things were like with the statement, “I remember when…” We hope you will enjoy these images 
of our waterfront. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 
Honorable Members of the 
Board of County Commissioners 
Manatee County, Florida 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Manatee County, Florida, Public 
Utilities System (the “System”), as of and for the year ended September 30, 2021, and the related 
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the System’s basic financial 
statements, as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this 
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation 
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due 
to fraud or error. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we 
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures 
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the 
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the System as of September 30, 2021, and the respective changes in 
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
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Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management’s discussion and analysis on pages 2–6, the schedule of changes in total other post-
employment benefits (OPEB) other than pension liability and other related ratios, the schedule of the 
System’s proportionate share of net pension liability for the FRS and HIS pension plans, and the 
schedule of the System’s contributions to the FRS and HIS pension plans on pages 30-32, be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic 
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it 
to be an essential part of the financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of 
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during 
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to 
express an opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Other Information 
 
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the System’s basic financial statements. The other information on pages 33-42 
is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial 
statements.  
 
The other information has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance 
on it. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 
 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 
2022, on our consideration of the System’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, rules, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements 
and other matters included under the heading Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control over 
Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the 
result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government 
Auditing Standards in considering the System’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Carr, Riggs, & Ingram, LLC 
 
Bradenton, Florida  
March 24, 2022 
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
 
 
 As Clerk of Circuit Court and Comptroller for the Manatee County Public Utilities System (the System), I offer readers of 
the System’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the System for the fiscal 
years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020.  All amounts, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in thousands of 
dollars. 
 
Financial Highlights 
 
 The System’s assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources at 

September 30, 2021 and 2020 by $1,171,055 and $1,122,705 (net position) respectively.  Of these amounts, 
$348,940 for 2021 and $336,859 for 2020 (unrestricted net position) were available to meet the System’s ongoing 
obligations. 
 

 The System’s total net position increased $48,350 in fiscal year 2021 and $68,545 in fiscal year 2020. 
 

 Total bonded debt, at par, of the Public Utilities System amounts to $206,800 at September 30, 2021, a decrease of 
$69,265 from fiscal year 2020. 

 
 Interest earning rates decreased from 1.549% in 2020 to 0.311% in 2021, resulting in lower interest earnings for the 

System. 
  

 Closure estimates of the County’s Lena Road Landfill, approved by state and federal authorities, resulted in an increase 
to the closure liability of $18,203 for fiscal year 2021 to $49,178.  The County now holds $37,879 for these closure 
purposes, with the current estimated remaining landfill life of 20 years. 

 
Overview of the Financial Statements 
 
 The Statements of Net Position provide the reader with detail about the assets plus deferred outflows of resources of 
the Public Utilities System as well as its outstanding liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.  The difference between 
assets plus deferred outflows of resources and liabilities plus deferred inflows of resources is reported as net position.  
The net position presentation shows additional breakdowns, which may help the reader identify the available resources of 
the System versus those that are restricted.  Changes in net position over time may be helpful in indicating an improving 
or a deteriorating financial position. The Statements of Net Position appear on page 7. 
 The Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, provided on page 8, present the revenues 
and expenses of the current and previous fiscal years, which resulted from operations.  The net of revenue less expense, 
when combined with other non-operating sources such as interest income, interest expense, issue costs, bond interest 
rebate, grants and contributions results in the net income the System generated for the fiscal year, which increased the net 
position presented on the Statements of Net Position.  A review of this statement for both fiscal years 2021 and 2020 can 
indicate the ongoing health of a business operation. 
 The Public Utilities System’s Statements of Cash Flows, presented on page 9, show those items which resulted in 
additions and subtractions to the Public Utilities System’s cash balance for the fiscal year.  A reconciliation of the cash 
change to the operating income of the Public Utilities System’s Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund 
Net Position is included. 
 The Notes to the Financial Statements for the Public Utilities System provide background information that meets 
stringent governmental accounting reporting requirements and give the reader additional information that may not be 
readily seen on the actual statements.  Examples of such information include: a breakdown of assets owned by the System, 
its contingent liabilities, debt requirements and retirement information.  The notes can be found on pages 10 to 29 and 
are an integral part of the financial statements. 
 This report presents certain required supplementary information on pages 30 to 32 concerning progress in funding of 
Manatee County’s obligation to provide other postemployment benefits to its employees as well as information related to 
the System’s participation in the Florida Retirement System pension plans.  Other information about the System, which may 
be of interest to the reader, is available beginning on page 33. 
 
Analysis of Financial Statements 
 
 My discussion of the Public Utilities System’s financial statements includes an analysis of major changes in the 
System’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and net position for fiscal years 
2021 and 2020 as well as a look at changes in revenues and expenses as presented in the accompanying statements.   
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2021 2020 2019
Assets:
   Current and other assets $ 465,334     $ 559,230     $ 538,718     
   Capital assets 1,042,692  958,308     904,536     
     Total assets 1,508,026  1,517,538  1,443,254  

Deferred outflows of
    resources 9,554         11,978       10,774       

Liabilities:
   Long-term liabilities 291,533     366,470     366,910     
   Other liabilities 35,655       38,870       28,718       
     Total liabilities 327,188     405,340     395,628     

Deferred inflows of
    resources 19,337       1,471         4,240         

Net position: 
   Net investment in capital assets 818,132     773,227     739,444     
   Restricted for debt service 409            1,276         1,272         
   Restricted for construction projects 3,574         4,576         3,385         
   Restricted for landfill closure -             6,767         7,610         
   Unrestricted 348,940     336,859     302,449     

     Total net position $ 1,171,055  $ 1,122,705  $ 1,054,160  

Net Position 

 
Net Position 
 
 As noted earlier in my discussion, changes in net position over time can be one of the best and most useful indicators 
of the System’s financial position. The System's increase in net position for this fiscal year amounts to $48,350.  This 
increase is primarily due to increased customer accounts.  While COVID-19 has been detrimental to many industries, 
construction continues to be strong.  Accordingly, water and wastewater installations have increased by 3.49% and 3.39% 
respectively from 2020.   
 Of the Public Utilities System's $1,171,055 in net position, $818,132 (69.86%) reflects its investment in capital assets, 
less any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  The remaining balance of $352,923 consists of $348,940 
(29.80%) in unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the System's ongoing obligations, as well as $3,983 (.34%) 
in restricted net position.  In comparison to the System’s $1,122,705 in net position for fiscal year 2020, $773,227 
(68.87%) reflects its investment in capital assets, less any outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  The remaining 
balance of $349,478 consists of $336,859 (30.0%) in unrestricted net position that may be used to meet the System’s 
ongoing obligations, as well as $12,619 (1.12%) in restricted net position. 
 At the end of the current and prior fiscal years, the Public Utilities System is able to report positive balances in all 
categories of net position. 
 
Cash and Accounts Receivable 
 
       The System’s cash and cash equivalents as of September 30, 2021 amounted to $436,791, a decrease of $91,093 
from fiscal year 2020.  At September 30, 2020, cash and cash equivalents totaled $527,884, an increase of $16,180 over 
fiscal year 2019.  The overall 17.26% decrease for fiscal year 2021 can be mostly attributed to a non-pooled investment 
held in an Escrow Deposit Trust Fund and then used to refund the Series 2010A and 2010B bonds on October 1, 2020.  
Also, the spending down of several restricted construction funds to complete CIP projects has added to this decrease. 
       Accounts receivable for trade and unbilled revenues of $20,937 net of a $2,556 allowance for uncollectible accounts, 
representing a 9.94% decrease from fiscal year 2020.  This is primarily due to higher collections during 2021.  There was a 
5.47% decrease in the allowance account reflecting a more conservative estimate of the collectability of these receivables. 
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Change in Net Position 
 
 The key elements of the System's increased net position are as follows: 
 

2021 2020 2019
Revenues:
   Program revenues
     Charges for services $ 198,825     $ 197,332      $ 185,577      
     Operating grants and contributions 276            1,233         10,415       
     Capital grants and contributions 51,747       49,295       51,667       

   General revenues
     Interest income 771            8,297         14,505       
     Miscellaneous 1,586         1,871         2,002         
     Bond interest rebate -             1,776         1,770         
     Gain (loss) on disposition of assets (185)           222            321            
       Total revenues 253,020     260,026      266,257      

Expenses:
   Water and sewer operations 133,971     138,745      131,016      
   Solid waste operations 58,748       40,547       38,046       
   Stormwater operations 7,278         7,597         7,523         
       Total expenses 199,997     186,889      176,585      

Increase in net position before transfers 53,023 73,137 89,672
Transfers (net) (4,673)        (4,592)        (3,559)        
Increase in net position 48,350       68,545       86,113       

Net position - beginning 1,122,705  1,054,160   968,047      
Net position - ending $ 1,171,055  $ 1,122,705   $ 1,054,160   

 
 
Operations 
 
 Charges for services increased by $1,493 during fiscal year 2021.  This is $10,262 less than the increase of $11,755 
experienced between fiscal years 2020 and 2019.  A significant portion for both years’ increases is related to the water 
and sewer operations as well as those from solid waste.  The increases from solid waste are attributable to an increased 
demand for both residential and commercial garbage collection, as the system added new customer accounts, leading to 
an improvement in tipping fee revenue.  The water and sewer increases are attributable to 4,559 and 3,910 new customers 
for fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. Also contributing to the increases in water and sewer operations are higher 
water consumption in certain months with dryer than normal conditions. 
 Total expenses for the System increased $13,108 in fiscal year 2021.  This is primarily due to an increase of $16,756 
in closure costs, an increase of $2,864 for wastewater collection and treatment, offset by a decrease of $5,382 in personal 
services related to pension expense.  In addition, there were increases amounting to $3,611 associated with normal costs 
needed to operate the system and a decrease of $4,741 in interest expense.  Fiscal year 2020 showed an increase of 
$10,304 in total expenses from the prior year.  This is primarily due to an increase of $2,512 in personal services, an 
increase of $1,189 for wastewater collection and treatment and an increase in closure liability of $1,729. 
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Capital Assets 
 
 As an enterprise operation, the System’s continuing investment in capital assets can give the reader a strong indication 
of the System’s ongoing expansion and increase in business.  Capital assets for the System include such items as land, 
water and sewer treatment plants and lines, landfill improvements, drainage systems and all the requisite equipment and 
machinery needed to run and maintain such a large operation.  Capital assets are not available for future spending needs 
and cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.  Other resources will be needed to repay any associated debt.  Capital assets 
are, therefore, separately presented in net position and are net of any accumulated depreciation and associated debt. 
 
Major additions of assets in fiscal year 2021 included the following (in thousands): 

 
 $23,459 – Repairs to the Lake Manatee Dam – Reestablishment of seepage control of dam core requiring 300 

linear feet of jet grout columns and 3,100 linear feet of Trench Remixing Deep cut off wall. 
 $7,489 – Anna Maria Force Main #5 Rehab – Replacement of approximately 12,000 linear feet of 20” ductile iron 

pipe with high-density polyethylene force main due to advanced age.  Located near 4300 Gulf Drive and Cortez 
Road.  

 $7,013 – SEW Force Main 13A Rehab – Replacement of approximately 13,000 linear feet of 24” ductile iron pipe 
force main with 27” and 36” high-density polyethylene force main due to advanced age.  Located near 112 63rd 
Ave and 34th Street. 

 $5,101 – Reclaim MARS Mgmt Improvement – Installation of meters between service areas, control valves for 
remote operation and redirection of flow.  Added telemetry and control at the water reclamation facilities and 
Manatee Agricultural Reuse Supply pump stations. 

 The System added $103,912 in ongoing construction projects (CIP). 
 

Major additions of assets in fiscal year 2020 included the following (in thousands): 
 
 $21,485 – Lake Manatee Water Treatment Plant – Design and construction of a raw water biological treatment unit 

which will remove the taste and odor causing compounds from surface water. 
 $8,151 – North West Reclamation Facility – Completion of a 3 million gallon equalization tank to regulate inflows.  
 $7,112 – Force Main Project – Replaced approximately 8,700 LF of 24” iron pipe with 27” high density 

polyethylene force main. 
 The System added $46,063 in ongoing construction projects (CIP). 

 
Additional information related to the System’s capital assets can be found in Note 6 on page 15 of this report. 

 
Administration of Debt 
 
 At September 30, 2021, the System had total bonded debt outstanding of $206,800. 
 

2021 2020 2019

Revenue bonds $ 206,800  $ 276,065  $ 284,920  
 

 
 During fiscal years 2021 and 2020, the System's total debt decreased by $69,265 and $8,855, respectively, due to 
refunded bonds, normal bond maturities and loan principal payments.  The Constitution of the State of Florida, Florida 
Statute 200.181 and Manatee County set no legal debt limit.  Additional information on the System's long-term debt can be 
found in Notes 7 and 8 on pages 16 to 18 of this report.  
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Economic Factors and Year 2022 Budgets and Rates 
 
    Factors considered in preparing the System’s budget for the 2022 fiscal year included: 
 

• The Consumer Price Index increased 5.4% over the twelve months ended September 30, 2021.  Although not 
specific to Manatee County, it does provide economic guidance for budgeting. 
 

• The unemployment rate for Manatee County at September 2021 was 3.7%, a decrease from the 5.2% rate reported 
in the previous fiscal year. 

 
• Population increased by 3.19% from the fiscal year ending September 30, 2020 to 411,209. 

 
• The number of construction permits issued (not rounded) in fiscal year 2021 was 39,041.  This is a 6,251 or 

19.06% increase over the previous year. 
 

• The number of metered water and sewer customers has increased in each of the last five years. 
 

• Interest earnings rates decreased notably in fiscal year 2021, resulting in an average portfolio yield of 0.311%.  As 
in prior years, interest earnings continue to be budgeted on a conservative basis for revenue purposes.   
 

Requests for Information: 
 
 This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the System’s finances.  Questions concerning any of 
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information may be addressed to the Clerk of 
Circuit Court and Comptroller, Manatee County, P.O. Box 25400, Bradenton, Florida 34206-5400.  I also suggest you visit 
our web site, www.manateeclerk.com for further financial information. 
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Assets Liabilities
2021 2020 2021 2020

Current assets: Current liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 377,013 $ 354,313 Accounts payable $ 9,594       $ 6,752       
Accounts receivable: Wages and benefits payable 1,687       1,588       
   Trade (net of allowance of $2,556 and Due to other governmental units 1              2              
     $2,704 for 2021 and 2020, respectively) 11,823 11,802 Contracts and retainages payable 9,400       6,907       
Unbilled revenue 9,114 11,447 Compensated absences 205          198          
Interest receivable 98 282 Deposits 191          203          
Sewer assessments receivable 13 16     Total current liabilities 21,078      15,650      
Due from other governmental units 74 -      
Prepaid items 489 438 Current liabilities (payable from restricted assets):
Inventory 4,157 4,231 Accounts payable 92            139          
Deposits 2,552 2,839 Interest payable -       1,306       
    Total current assets 405,333 385,368 Contracts and retainages payable 4,459       12,321      

Customer deposits 10,026      9,454       
Current restricted assets:     Total current liabilities (payable from restricted assets) 14,577      23,220      

Cash and cash equivalents 21,899 74,178
Investments - Cash and cash equivalents -      61,651 Noncurrent liabilities:
Interest receivable 6 54 Compensated absences 4,539       4,388       
    Total current restricted assets 21,905 135,883 Other postemployment benefits 4,119       3,994       

Net pension liability 14,308      37,038      
     Total current unrestricted and Closure liability 49,178      30,975      
       restricted assets 427,238 521,251 Revenue bonds noncurrent (net of premium) 219,389    290,075    

    Total noncurrent liabilities 291,533    366,470    
Noncurrent assets:       Total liabilities 327,188    405,340    

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 37,879 37,742
Advances to other funds 185 185 Deferred inflows of resources:
Sewer assessments receivable 32 52 Deferred other postemployment benefits inflows 840 949
Land and other nondepreciable assets 257,332 215,106 Deferred pension inflows 18,497      522          
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 785,360 743,202    Total deferred inflows of resources 19,337      1,471       
    Total noncurrent assets 1,080,788 996,287
      Total assets 1,508,026 1,517,538 Net Position

Deferred outflows of resources: Net investment in capital assets 818,132    773,227    
   Deferred charge on refunding 63 172 Restricted for debt service 409          1,276       
   Deferred other postemployment benefits outflows 406 376 Restricted for construction projects 3,574       4,576       
   Deferred pension outflows 9,085 11,430 Restricted for landfill closure -       6,767       
      Total deferred outflows of resources 9,554 11,978 Unrestricted 348,940    336,859    

    Total net position $ 1,171,055 $ 1,122,705 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Statements of Net Position

September 30, 2021 and 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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2021 2020

Operating revenues:
Water sales $ 62,673 $ 61,555
Wastewater treatment charges 87,304 87,825
Solid waste charges 48,848 47,952
Miscellaneous revenues 1,586 1,871
   Total operating revenues 200,411 199,203

Operating expenses:
Water and sewer:

Personal services 28,123 32,748
General and administrative 30,917 29,634
Water treatment and distribution 12,249 12,304
Wastewater collection and treatment 24,515 22,596

Solid waste:
Personal services 3,505 3,986
Landfill operation 6,450 5,613
Closure 18,203 1,447
Garbage collection 27,996 26,996

Stormwater:
Personal services 3,355 3,631
General and administrative 3,557 3,609

Depreciation 33,315 31,772
Total operating expenses 192,185 174,336

     Operating income 8,226 24,867

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Operating grants 276 1,233
Interest income 771 8,297
Interest expense (7,812) (12,553)
Bond interest rebate -      1,776
Gain (loss) on disposition of assets (185) 222

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (6,950) (1,025)
Income before contributions and transfers 1,276 23,842

Capital grants and contributions 51,747 49,295

Transfers from other funds -      18

Transfers to other funds (4,673) (4,610)
Change in net position 48,350 68,545

Total net position - beginning 1,122,705 1,054,160
Total net position - ending $ 1,171,055 $ 1,122,705

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

       Manatee County Public Utilities System       
Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 

Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020

(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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2021 2020 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities: Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
   Cash received from customers $ 203,283 $ 196,264    provided by operating activities:
   Cash payments to vendors for goods and services (73,310) (73,008) Operating income $ 8,226 $ 24,867
   Cash payments to employees for services (31,573) (30,373) Adjustments to reconcile operating income to
   Cash payments to other funds (36,631) (35,227)    net cash provided by operating activities:
      Net cash provided by operating activities 61,769 57,656       Depreciation 33,315 31,772

      Provision for uncollectibles (212) (312)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:       Changes in assets and liabilities:
   Operating grants 202 1,246       (Increase) decrease in:
   Transfers out (4,664) (4,607)          Accounts receivable 2,524 (3,129)
   Decrease in advance to other funds -          1,115          Prepaid items (51) 104
      Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities (4,462) (2,246)          Inventory 74 (448)

         Deposits (751) (635)
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:          Deferred other postemployment benefits outflows (30) (106)
   Acquisition and construction of capital assets (107,742) (51,049)          Deferred pension outflows 2,345 (1,269)
   Deposits paid on construction agreements 998 (1,370)       Increase (decrease) in:
   Principal payments on debt (69,264) (8,855)          Accounts payable 2,049 (1,239)
   Interest payments on debt (10,431) (13,873)          Wages and benefits payable 99 404
   Bond interest rebate -          1,776          Due to other governmental units (1) (2)
   Receipt of contributed capital 36,747 25,158          Customer deposits 560 505
   Proceeds from sale of assets 249 388          Compensated absences 158 328
      Net cash provided (used) by capital and          Other postemployment benefits 125 1,076

related financing activities (149,443) (47,825)          Net pension liability (22,730) 7,062
         Closure liability 18,203 1,447

Cash flows from investing activities:          Deferred other postemployment benefits inflows (109) 707
         Deferred pension inflows 17,975 (3,476)

   Interest on investments 1,043 70,433             Total adjustments 53,543 32,789

      Net cash provided (used) by investing activities 1,043 70,433
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 61,769 $ 57,656

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (91,093) 78,018 Non-cash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Cash and cash equivalents, October 1 527,884 449,866 Loss on disposition of assets $ 259 $ -   
Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 436,791 $ 527,884 Acquisition of contributed assets $ 15,023 $ 24,162

Assets transferred (to) from other funds $ (9) $ 15
Classified as:
   Current assets $ 377,013 $ 354,313
   Restricted assets 59,778 173,571
      Cash and cash equivalents, September 30 $ 436,791 $ 527,884

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Statements of Cash Flows

For the Fiscal Years Ended September 30, 2021 and 2020
(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
   
Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
 The accounting policies and the presentation of the financial report of the Manatee County Public Utilities System (the “Public 
Utilities System” or the “System”) have been designed to conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to 
governmental units, in accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 

The following is a summary of the significant accounting policies:  

 Reporting Entity - In January 1991, the "Public Utilities System Revenue Bond Resolution" was passed which established the 
Manatee County Public Utilities System. The Public Utilities System is the combination of the Water and Sewer, Solid Waste, and 
Stormwater Enterprise Funds, which are included in the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of Manatee County for the 
fiscal years ended September 30, 2020 and 2021.  The Public Utilities System accounts for the operation of the County’s 
potable water, wastewater, and reclaimed water services, as well as the operations of solid waste collection, disposal and 
recycling.  It also includes the operations of the stormwater (surface water) management system. 

 Basis of Accounting – Governmental proprietary operations are accounted for using a flow of economic resources 
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned and 
expenses are recognized in the period incurred.  Operating revenues generally result from providing goods and services such 
as water, sewerage and solid waste collections.  Operating expenses for these operations include all costs related to providing 
the service or product.  These costs include salaries, supplies, travel, contract services, depreciation, administrative expenses 
or other expenses directly related to costs of services.  All other revenue and expenses not meeting these definitions are 
reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.  

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles, as applicable to 
governmental units, requires management to make use of estimates that affect the reported amounts in the financial 
statements.  Actual results could differ from estimates.   

 Investments – County investments are valued in accordance with GASB 72 and 79.  Certain investments are stated at fair 
value while County investments in external investment pools are stated at amortized cost when the pool has qualified and 
made this election. 

 Inventories - Inventory quantities are determined by physical count and stated at cost using the first-in-first-out cost basis 
for chemicals and at a moving average for spare parts. 

 Capital Assets - Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost when purchased or constructed. Donated property, plant 
and equipment are recorded at acquisition value on the date received. 

 The County maintains a $5,000 threshold (this and the following threshold amounts are not expressed in thousands) for 
most additions to equipment, with the following exceptions:  generators and saws, $2,000 threshold; laptops, printers, and 
tablets, $1,500 threshold; and grant-funded equipment, $1,000 threshold.  Buildings are capitalized when the value is $15,000 
or greater.  System infrastructure assets represent major expenditures for such items as water and sewer treatment plants and 
lines, landfill improvements and drainage systems.  Additions and improvements for System infrastructure are capitalized 
when the cost amounts to a minimum of $250,000. Software purchases and internally generated additions to software are 
capitalized as intangible assets when their cost equals or exceeds $75,000 and are amortized over 7 years. Expenses for plant 
maintenance and repair are charged to operating expense as incurred. 

 Depreciation has been provided using the straight-line method.  The estimated useful lives of the various classes of 
depreciable capital assets are as follows: 
 

Life - Years
Buildings 15 - 75
Equipment 5 - 10
Autos, trucks and buses 3 - 12
System infrastructure 20 - 40
Public Domain Infrastructure 20 - 50
Improvements 7 - 15  

  
 Amortization of Premium on Bonds - Amortization of the premium on bonds is determined by using the outstanding 
principal method and is recorded as an adjustment to interest expense each year over the life of the debt. 
 
 Recognition of Income on Cycle-Billed Accounts - Water, sewer and solid waste charges are billed at various dates each 
month on a cycle billing method.  Unbilled service revenues are accrued at the end of the fiscal year by prorating actual 
billings. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies – Continued 
 
 Compensated Absences and Other Postemployment Benefits - The Public Utilities System participates in Manatee  
County’s policies related to the accumulation of annual and sick leave and other postemployment benefits other than 
pensions.  A liability and expense has been recognized for these future benefits.   
  

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources - In addition to assets, the Statement of Net Position includes a separate section 
for deferred outflows of resources.  This represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense) until then.  Three types of items qualify for reporting in this category.  
A deferred charge on refunding results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price.  
This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt.  The second type of item 
consists of the differences between the expected and actual experience measurement in other postemployment benefits with 
regard to economic or demographic factors.  The third type is related to various actuarial assumption changes and valuations 
related to the County’s portion of the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan and Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy Program 
valuations, and retirement contribution payments made by the County after the valuation date of the Florida Retirement 
System’s latest valuation but before the end of the County’s fiscal year.  
 

In addition to liabilities, the Statements of Net Position include a separate section for deferred inflows of resources.  This 
represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of 
resources (revenue) until that time.  Two items qualify for reporting in this category.  The first is the deferred pension which is 
comprised of various actuarial assumption changes and valuations related to the System’s portion of the Florida Retirement 
System Pension Plan and Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy Program annual valuations.  These amounts are recognized as 
inflows of resources in the period that they become available.  The second type consists of the differences between the 
expected and actual experience measurement in postemployment benefits with regard to economic or demographic factors. 

 
Pensions – Manatee County Public Utilities System participates in the Florida Retirement System’s pension plans.  For 

purposes of measuring the System’s net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions and pension expenses, information is included from the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan and Other 
State Administered Systems’ Annual Comprehensive Financial Reports about the System’s proportion of the fiduciary net 
position of the Florida Retirement System’s pension plans, which include the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the Health 
Insurance Subsidy (HIS) plans.  Additions to and deductions from the FRS’ and HIS’ fiduciary net positions have been 
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the State.  For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of 
employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms of each plan.  The FRS and 
HIS plans report investments in accordance with GASB Codification Section I50, Investments. 

 
Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Statements – The County implemented the following GASB 

Statements during the fiscal year ended September 30, 2021: 
  

1) Statement No. 84, “Fiduciary Activities.”  This Statement establishes criteria for accounting and financial reporting of 
fiduciary activities. 

2) Statement No. 90, “Majority Equity Interests.”  This Statement improves the consistency and comparability of reporting a 
majority equity interest and improves the relevance of financial statement information for certain component units. 

3) Statement No. 98, “The Annual Comprehensive Financial Report.”  This Statement establishes the term annual 
comprehensive financial report (ACFR); replacing the term comprehensive annual financial report.  

 
Note 2 Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents are cash on hand as well as demand deposits, investments and certificates of deposit included in 
pooled cash with original maturities of three months or less. Investments include certificates of deposit and investments with 
original maturities of three months or greater.  
 
Note 3 Investments 
 
 The Board of County Commissioners uses the Pooled Cash method of accounting for investments.  All temporary excess cash 
of the governmental and proprietary funds and certain external (non-county) agencies, are grouped together to be invested in 
a variety of investments, in accordance with Florida State Statute 218 and the County’s Investment Policy, as approved by the 
Board of County Commissioners.  The total of the investments and cash in the bank equates to the total pooled cash of all of 
the respective funds, and is referred to as the Investment Pool (the “Pool”).  There is not a one to one relationship between any 
individual investment and any one fund that participates in the Pool.  The Public Utilities System participates in the Pool. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 3 Investments - Continued 
 
 The Public Utilities System held $436,791 at September 30, 2021, which represents 36.26% of the County’s pooled 
investments.  At September 30, 2020, the Public Utilities System held $466,233 which represents 41.74% of the County’s 
pooled investments.  Detailed information on the statement of financial position of the Pool, the composition of the County’s 
pooled and non-pooled investment portfolio stated at fair value in accordance with GASB 72 and 79, and disclosure of custodial 
credit risk, credit quality risk, concentration of credit risk and interest rate risk is detailed in Note 3 of the Manatee County 
Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR), for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020, available at 
www.manateeclerk.com. 
  
 The portfolio composition at the County level September 30, 2021 and 2020 was:  
 
 

Fair Value Fair Value
Type and Number of Investments Method Hierarchy Value

Cash (1) Cost - $ 34,566       
External Government Investment Pools (3) Amortized Cost/Current

  NAV Share Value - 854,644     
US Treasury Notes (4)  Quoted Market Level 2 32,183       
Government Sponsored Enterprises (36) Quoted Market Level 2 283,277     
    Total (44) $ 1,204,670  

9/30/2021

 
 

 

Fair Value Fair Value
Type and Number of Investments Method Hierarchy Value

Cash (1) Cost - $ 37,780       
External Government Investment Pools (3) Amortized Cost/Current

  NAV Share Value - 751,493     
US Treasury Notes (16)  Quoted Market Level 2 129,150     
Government Sponsored Enterprises (25) Quoted Market Level 2 198,548     
    Total (45) $ 1,116,971  

9/30/2020

 
 

 
Board of County Commissioners Non-Pooled Investments 
 
 Non-pooled investments of the Board, which represent the proceeds from the County’s Public Utilities Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2017 to be used to finance the debt service on the 2017 bonds, until the remaining balance is used to refund the 
Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Build America Bonds, Series 2010A and Recovery Zone Economic Development Bond, 
Series 2010B, maturing on or after October 1, 2021. These investments consist of U.S. Treasury Notes, held in an Escrow 
Deposit Trust Fund account with U.S. Bank National Association.   
 Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets.  Level 2 are inputs other than quoted 
prices included within level 1 that are observable directly or indirectly, and level 3 are unobservable inputs. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 3 Investments - Continued 
 
Restricted Investment 
 
 At September 30, 2020 in accordance with GASB 72 and 79, Utilities non-pooled investments were valued as follows: 
 

 
 

Fair Value Fair Value
Type of Investment Method Hierarchy

Cash (1) Cost -       $ 61,651  

9/30/2020
Fair Value

 
      
   At September 30, 2021, Utilities no longer held any non-pooled investments.  
 
Note 4 Net Investment in Capital Assets 
 
 On the Statement of Net Position, net position is presented in three components.  These include net investment in 
capital assets, restricted and unrestricted.  Net investment in capital assets at September 30, 2021 is calculated in the 
following manner: 
 

Capital-related items used to determine Water and Solid Stormwater
net investments in capital assets Sewer Waste Funds 2021 2020

Unspent debt proceeds $ 7,896 $ -          $ -          $ 7,896 $ 58,926
Construction in progress and capital assets, 
  net of accumulated depreciation 978,290 29,299 35,103 1,042,692 958,308
Deferred outflows of resources, deferred 
  charge on refunding 63 -          -          63 172
Vouchers, contracts and retainages payable (14,673) -          (191) (14,864) (19,496)
Bonds, notes and loans payable (205,134) -          -          (205,134) (217,999)
Unamortized bond premiums (12,521) -          -          (12,521) (6,682)
Net investment in capital assets $ 753,921 $ 29,299 $ 34,912 $ 818,132 $ 773,229
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 5 Restricted Assets 

 
 Restricted assets, as provided for by resolutions adopted by the County Commission for the issuance of the revenue bonds 
and the landfill closure escrow account required by state and federal laws and regulations, are as follows: 
 

Interest
Receivable Total

Debt service funds $ 407         $ -           $ 2            $ 409        
Customer deposits 10,026     -           -         10,026   
Construction funds 11,466     -           4            11,470   
Landfill closure escrow 37,879     -           -         37,879   
   Total $ 59,778     $ -           $ 6            $ 59,784   

Interest
Receivable Total

Debt service funds $ 62,919     $ -           $ 8            $ 62,927   
Customer deposits 9,454       -           -         9,454     
Construction funds 63,456     -           46          63,502   
Landfill closure escrow 37,742     -           -         37,742   
   Total $ 173,571   $ -           $ 54          $ 173,625 

September 30, 2021

September 30, 2020

Cash and Cash
Equivalents

Cash and Cash
Equivalents Investments

Investments

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

-14-



Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
 
Note 6 Capital Assets  

Additions Deductions
As of September 30, 2020
Capital assets not depreciated:
  Land $ 50,049       $ -            $ -         $ 50,049       
  Construction in progress 149,401     58,841      43,185   165,057     
    Total assets not depreciated 199,450     58,841      43,185   215,106     
Capital assets depreciated:
  Buildings 38,993       -            -         38,993       
  System infrastructure 1,201,223  67,347      120        1,268,450  
  Machinery and equipment 32,471       2,710        3,521     31,660       
    Total assets depreciated 1,272,687  70,057      3,641     1,339,103  
Less accumulated depreciation:
  Buildings 12,052       882           -         12,934       
  System infrastructure 529,997     29,600      96          559,501     
  Machinery and equipment 25,552       1,290        3,376     23,466       
    Total accumulated depreciation 567,601     31,772      3,472     595,901     
       Total depreciable capital assets, net 705,086     38,285      169        743,202     
          Total capital assets, net $ 904,536     $ 97,126      $ 43,354   $ 958,308     

As of September 30, 2021
Capital assets not depreciated:
  Land $ 50,049       $ 15,232      $ -         $ 65,281       
  Construction in progress 165,057     102,735    75,741   192,051     
    Total assets not depreciated 215,106     117,967    75,741   257,332     
Capital assets depreciated:
  Buildings 38,993       -            -         38,993       
  System infrastructure 1,268,450  75,543      -         1,343,993  
  Machinery and equipment 31,660       364           3,910     28,114       
    Total assets depreciated 1,339,103  75,907      3,910     1,411,100  
Less accumulated depreciation:
  Buildings 12,934       881           -         13,815       
  System infrastructure 559,501     31,245      -         590,746     
  Machinery and equipment 23,466       1,189        3,476     21,179       
    Total accumulated depreciation 595,901     33,315      3,476     625,740     
       Total depreciable capital assets, net 743,202     42,592      434        785,360     
          Total capital assets, net $ 958,308     $ 160,559    $ 76,175   $ 1,042,692  

September 30October 1

 
 
Depreciation expense was $33,315 and $31,772 for fiscal years ending September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 7 Long-Term Liabilities 
 
 The following is long-term liability activity for the fiscal years 2020 and 2021: 
 

Revenue Compensated OPEB Closure Net Pension
Bonds Absences Liability Liability Liability Total

Balance at:
   October 1, 2019 $ 284,920      $ 4,258 $ 2,918     $ 29,528  $ 29,976  $ 351,600  
      Additions -             2,330 1,446     1,447    13,602  18,825    
      Deductions 8,855          2,002 370        -           6,540    17,767    
   September 30, 2020 276,065      4,586 3,994     30,975  37,038  352,658  
      Additions -             2,391 343        18,203  13,816  34,753    
      Deductions 69,265        2,233 218        -       36,546  108,262  
   September 30, 2021 $ 206,800      $ 4,744 $ 4,119     $ 49,178  $ 14,308  $ 279,149  

Due within one year at:
September 30, 2020 $ -             $ 198    $ -         $ -       $ -       $ 198         
September 30, 2021 $ -             $ 205    $ $ -       $ $ 205         

    
    
 Revenue bonds payable consisted of the following at September 30: 

2021 2020
$17,925 Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds,
Series 2010A $ -       $ 15,045

$45,300 Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds,
Series 2010B -       45,300

$22,650 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2011, plus unamortized premium of $145 and $286
for 2021 and 2020, respectively. 5,400 7,910

$91,485 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds,
Series 2015, plus unamortized premium of $5,040 and $5,440
for 2021 and 2020, respectively. 74,275 78,040

$55,075 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Series 2017, plus unamortized premium of $6,435 and $7,255
for 2021 and 2020, respectively. 52,430 55,075

$74,695 Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds,
Series 2018, plus unamortized premium of $969 and $1,029
for 2021 and 2020, respectively. 74,695 74,695

     Total $ 206,800 $ 276,065
 

 
$22,650 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 - These bonds are dated December 14, 2011, with interest at 
5.00% and amounts ranging from $2,635 of principal due October 1, 2022 to $2,765 due October 1, 2023.  Interest is payable 
semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year until final maturity in 2023.   
 
$91,485 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds, Series 2015 - These bonds are dated April 22, 2015, 
with interest rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% and amounts ranging from $1,450 of principal due October 1, 2024 to $11,220 
due October 1, 2039.  Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year until final maturity in 2039.   
 
$55,075 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 - These bonds are dated December 28, 2017, with 
interest rates varying from 4.00% to 5.00% and amounts ranging from $2,770 of principal due October 1, 2022 to $4,930 
due October 1, 2035.  Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year until final maturity in 2035. 
 
$74,695 Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2018 - These bonds are dated September 20, 2018, with 
interest rates varying from 3.00% to 5.00% and amounts ranging from $1,590 of principal due October 1, 2022 to $4,210 
due October 1, 2048.  Interest is payable semi-annually on April 1 and October 1 of each year until final maturity in 2048. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 7 Long-Term Liabilities - Continued 
 
The total annual debt service requirements as of September 30 are as follows: 
  

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total
2022 $ -         $ 4,340      $ 4,340      
2023 6,995      8,504      15,499    
2024 7,335      8,146      15,481    
2025 6,245      7,806      14,051    
2026 6,530      7,487      14,017    

2027-2031 39,600    32,103    71,703    
2032-2036 52,980    22,031    75,011    
2037-2041 57,220    10,157    67,377    
2042-2046 17,700    3,802      21,502    
2047-2049 12,195    673         12,868    

Total $ 206,800  $ 105,049  $ 311,849  
 

 
   Although principal payments are due on October 1, the Public Utilities System makes its payments on September 30.  
Accordingly, the principal and one-half of the interest amounts on this schedule are not due until the first day following the 
fiscal year indicated and no amount is reported as the current portion of revenue bonds payable on the Statements of Net 
Position. 

  The Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2010 and 2018, and Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
2011, 2015 and 2017, are payable solely from and secured by a first lien upon and a pledge of the net revenues of the Public 
Utilities System. The Public Utilities System consists of the County's Water and Sewer System, Solid Waste System and 
Stormwater Management System.  The pledge of the net revenues by the County from the operations of the Public Utilities 
System does not constitute a lien upon the Public Utilities System or any other property of the County.  The covenants of the 
resolution authorizing the Public Utilities Revenue Bonds include, among other things, an obligation of the County to fix, 
establish and maintain such rates and collect such fees, rentals or other charges for the services and facilities of its Public 
Utilities System, and to revise the same from time to time whenever necessary, as will always provide in each year net 
revenues, as defined in the resolution authorizing the revenue bonds which shall be adequate to pay at least one hundred 
fifteen percent (115%) of the annual debt service requirements for the Public Utilities System.  The Public Utilities System was in 
compliance with these covenants for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020. 
 
Note 8 Defeased Revenue Bonds 
 
 On November 20, 1984, the County refunded all bonds outstanding at that date by issuance of $72,872 Water and Sewer 
Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1984.  The bonds refunded include Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding 
and Improvement Bonds, Series 1978, 1978A and 1983. 

 On September 30, 1987, $28,065 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1987, dated September 1, 1987, were 
issued.  The proceeds were used to refund the Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1984 
maturing in the years 1997 through 2009 and to pay certain costs and expenses related to the issuance of the bonds. 

 On May 9, 1991, the County refunded the $41,175 Water and Sewer Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 1987 by issuance of 
the $37,840 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991B. Simultaneously with the issuance of the Series 1991B 
Bonds, sufficient funds were escrowed to refund the $28,065 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1987. 

 On July 2, 1991, the County refunded $10,865 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1984, 
$31,310 Water and Sewer Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1986 and $15,250 Water and Sewer Revenue 
Improvement Bonds, Series 1988 by issuance of the $62,664 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991C. 

 On October 13, 1993, the County refunded the $38,380 of outstanding Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 
1991A maturing in the years 2002 through 2013 and $6,255 of the Public Utilities Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds, Series 1991C term bonds maturing in 2013 by issuance of the $51,152 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 
1993A. 

 On June 4, 1996, the County accomplished a cash defeasance of $19,620 outstanding Public Utilities Revenue Refunding 
Bonds, Series 1991B, which have been fully paid. 

 
 
 
 
 

-17-



Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 8 Defeased Revenue Bonds – Continued 

On August 8, 2001, $16,620 Public Utility Revenue Bonds, Series 2001A, dated July 15, 2001, were issued. The proceeds were 
used to refund the $6,020 of outstanding Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1991B and $9,965 of outstanding 
Public Utilities Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 1991C serial and term bonds, which have been fully paid. 

 On October 1, 2003, the County refunded $36,220 of Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 1993A, which have  
been fully paid, by issuance of the $74,545 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, Series 2003, which 
have been fully paid. 

 On December 14, 2011, the County refunded $23,555 of outstanding Public Utilities Revenue Refunding and Improvement 
Bonds Series 2003, which have been fully paid, by issuing the 2011 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds, which have been 
fully paid. 

    On April 22, 2015, the County refunded $18,290 of Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Bonds, Series 2006, maturing in 
the years 2017 through 2021, by issuing the 2015 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding and Improvement Bonds, which have 
been fully paid. 

 All of the above bonds, having been refunded by the full cash advance refunding method, are not reflected in the financial 
statements as liabilities of the Public Utilities System. At September 30, 2021, there is no outstanding principal on these 
refunded bonds. 

 On December 28, 2017 the County advance refunded, on a cross-over basis, Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Build 
America Bonds, Series 2010A and the Public Utilities Revenue Improvement Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds, 
Series 2010B (the 2010 bonds) with the Series 2017 Public Utilities Revenue Refunding Bonds with a principal amount of 
$55,075. The net proceeds of $64,308 were deposited into an irrevocable escrow deposit account to provide funds for the 
payment of interest on the cross-over refunding debt until the cross-over date. At the cross-over date of October 1, 2020, 
amounts held in escrow provided funds for the future debt service payments on the 2010 bonds and those bonds are 
considered defeased within these financial statements. At September 30, 2021 there is no outstanding principal on these 
refunded bonds. 
 
Note 9 Retirement Plan 
 
 The Public Utilities System is a participant under Manatee County in the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan (“FRS Pension 
Plan”) and the Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy (“HIS”), both of which are cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit plans 
managed by the State of Florida, Department of Management Services, Division of Retirement.  The System also participates 
under Manatee County in the Florida Retirement System Investment Plan (“FRS Investment Plan”), a defined contribution plan 
administered by the State Board of Administration.  All full-time Public Utilities System employees are required to participate in 
the Florida Retirement System, as part of either the FRS Pension Plan or the FRS Investment Plan. 

 The Florida Retirement System (“FRS”) was established under the authority of the Florida Legislature in 1970.  Statutory 
authority for plan structure, benefit levels and contribution rates for the state-administered retirement funds is detailed in 
Chapters 112 and 121, Florida Statutes, and plan changes or changes in benefit terms must be made by the Legislature.  At 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, FRS covered approximately 635,000 and over 644,000 full-time employees, respectively, of 
various governmental units within the State of Florida.   

 The Florida Division of Retirement issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required 
supplementary information for the Florida Retirement System Pension Plan and Other State-Administered Systems.  The report 
may be obtained through the Florida Retirement website: www.frs.myflorida.com or by writing to the Department of 
Management Services, Division of Retirement, Research and Education Section, P.O. Box 9000, Tallahassee, FL 32315-9000. 
 
Plan General Information: 
 
A.   FRS Pension Plan 
 
 The FRS Pension Plan is a defined benefit plan with retirement benefits based upon age, average compensation, and years-of-
service credit.  Vesting of benefits is based upon date of hire.  Employees hired before July 1, 2011 are vested after 6 years of 
creditable service. For those hired on or after July 1, 2011 vesting of benefits occurs after the completion of 8 years of 
creditable service.  Normal retirement benefits are available for employees hired before July 1, 2011 who retire at age 62 with 6 
years of service or after 30 years if under age 62.  Normal retirement benefits are available at age 65 with 8 years of service for 
employees hired on or after July 1, 2011, or after 33 years, if under age 65.  Early retirement is available for those vested within 
20 years of normal retirement age, with a 5% reduction of benefits for each year prior to the normal retirement age.  
Compensation is computed as the average of an individual's 5 highest years of earnings for employees hired before July 1,  
2011 or 8 highest years of earnings for employees hired on or after July 1, 2011.  In addition, the Deferred Retirement Option 
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
Plan General Information - Continued 
 
A.   FRS Pension Plan - Continued 
 
Program (“DROP”) is available under the FRS Pension Plan when the member first reaches eligibility for normal retirement. The 
DROP allows a member to retire while continuing employment for up to 60 months.  All FRS members, excluding DROP 
participants, are required to contribute 3% of their salaries to the FRS on a pre-tax basis. 
 
B.   FRS Investment Plan 
 
 The Public Employee Optional Retirement Program (the “FRS Investment Plan”) is a defined contribution alternative that is 
open to regular FRS Pension Plan members in lieu of participation in the FRS Pension Plan, except for those who are in the DROP 
Program.  Related employer contributions are made to the FRS Investment Plan, which holds the contributions in individual 
investment accounts for each participating employee.  As with the FRS Pension Plan, participants are required to contribute 3% 
of their pre-tax salaries.  Participants direct their own investments, utilizing the various investment options available through 
the Plan.  These investment accounts vest to the employee after 1 year of service and members are immediately vested in their  
own contributions.  Investment Plan funds may be withdrawn by the employee 90 days after termination or retirement from a 
participating employer in the FRS.  Alternately, the funds may remain in the investment account until the employee reaches 
normal retirement age or some earlier date, at the employee’s choosing.  Service retirement benefits are based solely upon the 
value of the member’s account upon retirement.  Costs of administering the plan are funded through an employer contribution 
of 0.06% of payroll and by forfeited benefits of plan members as of September 30, 2021 and 2020.  The System’s pension 
expense for the FRS Investment Plan totaled $375 and $337 for the years ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 respectively. 

 
C.   Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy 
 
 The Florida Retirement System Health Insurance Subsidy is a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan 
established under Section 112.363, Florida Statutes.  The benefit is a monthly payment to assist eligible retirees and 
beneficiaries of state-administered retirement systems in paying their health insurance costs.  All eligible retirees and 
beneficiaries receive a monthly HIS payment equal to the number of years of creditable service completed at the time of 
retirement multiplied by $5. The payments are at least $30 but not more than $150 per month.  To be eligible to receive the 
HIS benefit, a retiree under a state-administered retirement system must provide proof of health insurance coverage, which can 
include Medicare.  The HIS plan is funded by required contributions from FRS participating employers, as set by the Legislature. 
Pursuant to Section 112.363 of the Florida Statutes, required employer contributions are a percentage of gross compensation 
for specified employees.  The HIS availability is based on the guidelines set forth by the Legislature on an annual basis.  HIS 
contributions are deposited in a separate trust fund, from which HIS payments are authorized.  HIS benefits are not guaranteed 
and are subject to annual legislative appropriation. In the event the legislative appropriation or available funds fail to provide 
full subsidy benefits to all participants, benefits may be reduced or cancelled.  
 
D.   Cost of Living Adjustments 
 
 FRS Pension Plan benefits received by retirees and beneficiaries are increased by a cost-of-living adjustment each year.  The 
cost-of-living adjustment for those retired or in DROP prior to August 1, 2011, is 3 percent per year.  For retirees with an 
effective retirement date or DROP begin date on or after August 1, 2011, the cost-of–living adjustment is a percentage: the sum 
of the pre-July 2011 service credit divided by the total service credit at retirement, multiplied by 3 percent.   FRS Pension Plan 
members initially enrolled on or after July 1, 2011, will not have a cost-of-living adjustment after retirement.  
 
E.   Contributions 

 
 Participating employer contributions for both the FRS Pension Plan and Investment Plan are based upon statewide rates 
established by the Legislature of the State of Florida.     

10/1 - 6/30 7/1 - 9/30 10/1 - 6/30 7/1 - 9/30

Regular 10.00% 10.82% 8.47% 10.00%
Special Risk 24.45% 25.89% 25.48% 24.45%
Senior Management 27.29% 29.01% 25.41% 27.29%
Elected Officials 49.18% 51.42% 48.82% 49.18%
DROP 16.98% 18.34% 14.60% 16.98%

2021 2020
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
Plan General Information - Continued 
 
E.   Contributions - Continued 
 
 These contribution rates include 1.66% HIS Plan subsidy contributions for the same periods. The System’s contributions made 
during the year ended September 30, 2021 and 2020 were $2,873 and $2,471, respectively, equal to the actuarially determined 
contribution requirements for the year.  The employee contributions were $734 and $719 for fiscal years 2021 and 2020, 
respectively. 

F.   Long-Term Expected Rate of Return 
 
 The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined by the Florida Retirement System using 
a forward-looking capital market economic model.  This model is applicable for valuation of both the FRS Pension Plan and the 
HIS Plan, unless otherwise noted.  The table below shows assumptions for each of the asset classes in which the plan was 
invested based upon the long-term target asset allocation.  The allocation policy’s description of each asset class was used to 
map the target allocation to the asset classes shown below.  Each asset class assumption is based on a consistent set of 
underlying assumptions, and includes an adjustment for the inflation assumption.  The target allocation and best estimates of 
arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized below for year ending September 30, 2021: 
 

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric)
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return

Cash 1.00% 2.10% 2.10%
Fixed Income 20.00% 3.80% 3.70%
Global equity 54.20% 8.20% 6.70%
Real estate (property) 10.30% 7.10% 6.20%
Private equity 10.80% 11.70% 8.50%
Strategic investments 3.70% 5.70% 5.40%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.40%

(1) As outlined in the Plan's investment policy
 

 The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are summarized below 
for year ending September 30, 2020:  

Compound
Annual Annual

Target Arithmetic (Geometric)
Asset Class Allocation (1) Return Return

Cash 1.00% 2.20% 2.20%
Fixed Income 19.00% 3.00% 2.90%
Global equity 54.20% 8.00% 6.70%
Real estate (property) 10.30% 6.40% 5.80%
Private equity 11.10% 10.80% 8.10%
Strategic investments 4.40% 5.50% 5.30%

Assumed Inflation - Mean 2.40%

(1) As outlined in the Plan's investment policy
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Note 9 Retirement Plan – Continued 
 
FRS Pension Plan 
 
1)    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
 At September 30, 2021, the System reported a liability of $5,193 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The 
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021.  The System’s proportion of the net pension liability was actuarially 
determined, based on a projection of the System’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating governmental units. At June 30, 2021, the System’s proportion was 0.068749440%, 
which was an increase of 0.003730330% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 
 
    For the year ended September 30, 2021, the System recognized pension expense of $513.  At September 30, 2021, the 
System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 890       $ -        
Changes of assumptions 3,553    -        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
     on pension plan investments -        (18,118) 
Changes in proportion and differences between System
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 1,895    -        
System contributions subsequent to the measurement date 769       -        
Total $ 7,107    $ (18,118) 

 
 

 At September 30, 2020, the System reported a liability of $28,180 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  
The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension 
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.  The System’s proportion of the net pension liability was 
actuarially determined, based on a projection of the System’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to 
the projected contributions of all participating governmental units. At June 30, 2020, the System’s proportion was 
0.065019110%, which was an increase of 0.001033384% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019. 
 
    For the year ended September 30, 2020, the System recognized pension expense of $6,169.  At September 30, 2020, the 
System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 1,079    $ -        
Changes of assumptions 5,102    -        
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
     on pension plan investments 1,678    -        
Changes in proportion and differences between System
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 732       -        
System contributions subsequent to the measurement date 707       -        
Total $ 9,298    $ -        
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
FRS Pension Plan - Continued 
 
1)    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions - Continued 
 
 Of the total reported as the deferred outflows of resources related to pensions, $769 resulted from the System’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date and will be recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the year 
ending September 30, 2022.  $707 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from the System’s 
contributions subsequent to the measurement date was recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended 
September 30, 2021.  Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 
 

Fiscal year ending
September 30: 2021 2020

2021 $ -      $ 1,904   
2022 (3,099) 1,874   
2023 (3,138) 1,833   
2024 (3,185) 1,785   
2025 (3,228) 1,195   
2026 870     -       

Thereafter -      -       
 

2)   Other Key Actuarial Assumptions for the FRS Pension Plan 
      
    As of September 30, 2021 the actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June 30, 2021 were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.  The valuation date is 
July 1, 2021, and the measurement date is June 30, 2021.  Key assumptions include an inflation rate of 2.40%, salary increases 
including inflation of 3.25%, and an investment rate of return of 6.80 %, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation.  The mortality rates are based on the PUB-2010 base table varies by member category and sex, projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2018, and the actuarial cost method used is the Individual Entry Age method. 

 As of September 30, 2020 the actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability as of June 30, 2020 were 
based on the results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.  The valuation date is 
July 1, 2020, and the measurement date is June 30, 2020.  Key assumptions include an inflation rate of 2.40%, salary increases 
including inflation of 3.25%, and an investment rate of return of 6.80%, net of pension plan investment expense, including 
inflation.  The mortality rates are based on the PUB-2010 base table varies by member category and sex, projected 
generationally with Scale MP-2018, and the actuarial cost method used is the Individual Entry Age method. 
 
3)   Discount Rate 
 
 The plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current 
active and inactive employees.  Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-term 
expected rate of return. At September 30, 2021 and 2020, the related discount rate used to measure the total pension liability 
was 6.80%. 
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
FRS Pension Plan - Continued 
 
4) Sensitivity Analysis  
 
 The following presents the System’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the FRS Pension Plan as of September 
30, 2021 and 2020, calculated using the discount rate of 6.80% for 2021 and 2020, as well as what the plan’s net pension 
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher 
than the current rate. 

Current
1% Discount 1%

Fiscal year ending Decrease Rate Increase
September 30: 5.80% 6.80% 7.80%

2021 $ 23,225     $ 5,193        $ (9,879)  

Current
1% Discount 1%

Fiscal year ending Decrease Rate Increase
September 30: 5.80% 6.80% 7.80%

2020 $ 44,999     $ 28,181      $ 14,133 
 

 
Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy  
 
1)    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 
 
  At September 30, 2021, the System reported a liability of $9,115 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The 
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.  The System’s proportion of the net pension liability was actuarially 
determined, based on a projection of the System’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating governmental units. At June 30, 2021, the System’s proportion was 0.074305770%, 
which was an increase of 0.001764007% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020. 
 
    For the year ended September 30, 2021, the System recognized pension expense of $887.  At September 30, 2021, the 
System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 305     $ (4)        
Changes of assumptions 716     (375)    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
     on pension plan investments 10       -      
Changes in proportion and differences between System
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 830     -      
System contributions subsequent to the measurement date 117     -      
Total $ 1,978  $ (379)    
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy – Continued 
 
1)    Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions - Continued 
 
 At September 30, 2020, the System reported a liability of $8,857 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability.  The 
net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability 
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020.  The System’s proportion of the net pension liability was actuarially 
determined, based on a projection of the System’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the 
projected contributions of all participating governmental units. At June 30, 2020, the System’s proportion was 0.072541763%, 
which was an increase of 0.001574406% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2019. 
 
     For the year ended September 30, 2020, the System recognized pension expense of $914.  At September 30, 2020, the 
System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the following: 
 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 362     $ (7)        
Changes of assumptions 952     (515)    
Net difference between projected and actual earnings
     on pension plan investments 7         -      
Changes in proportion and differences between System
     contributions and proportionate share of contributions 693     -      
System contributions subsequent to the measurement date 118     -      
Total $ 2,132  $ (522)    

 
 Of the total reported as deferred outflows of resources, $117 related to pensions resulting from the System’s contributions 
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the year ending September 
30, 2022.  $118 related to pensions resulting from the System’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date was 
recognized as reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended September 30, 2021.  Other amounts reported as 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as 
follows: 

Fiscal year ending
September 30: 2021 2020

2021 $ -      $ 313      
2022 343     293      
2023 313     263      
2024 286     235      
2025 250     196      
2026 213     161      

Thereafter 77       31        
 

 
2) Other Key Actuarial Assumptions  
      
 As of September 30, 2021 the actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability for the HIS program as of 
June 30, 2021 were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS plan, which was for the period July 
1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.  Because the HIS program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no separate experience study 
has been completed by FRS for that plan.  The HIS program valuation is updated biannually, and the most recent valuation date 
is July 1, 2020.  This valuation is updated by FRS for GASB reporting in the year that a valuation is not performed.  Key 
assumptions include an inflation rate of 2.40%, salary increases including inflation of 3.25%, and a discount rate of 2.16% 
(municipal bond rate).  The asset valuation method is fair market value.  The mortality rates are based on the Generational 
PUB-2010 with Projection Scale MP-2018, and the actuarial cost method used is the Individual Entry Age method. 

 As of September 30, 2020 the actuarial assumptions that determined the total pension liability for the HIS program as of 
June 30, 2020 were based on certain results of the most recent experience study for the FRS plan, which was for the period July 
1, 2013 through June 30, 2018.  Because the HIS program is funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, no separate experience study 
has been completed by FRS for that plan.  The HIS program valuation is updated biannually, and the most recent valuation date 
is July 1, 2020.  This valuation is updated by FRS for GASB reporting in the year that a valuation is not performed.  Key 
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Note 9 Retirement Plan - Continued 
 
Retiree Health Insurance Subsidy - Continued 
 
assumptions include an inflation rate of 2.40%, salary increases including inflation of 3.25%, and a discount rate of 2.21% 
(municipal bond rate).  The asset valuation method is fair market value.  The mortality rates are based on the Generational 
PUB-2010 with Projection Scale MP-2018, and the actuarial cost method used is the Individual Entry Age method. 
 
3) Discount Rate 
 
 In general, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the single rate equivalent to discounting at 
the long-term expected rate of return for benefit payments prior to the projected depletion date.  Because the HIS benefit is 
essentially funded on a pay-as-you-go basis, the depletion date is considered to be immediate, and the single equivalent 
discount rate is equal to the municipal bond rate selected by the plan sponsor.  The related discount rate used to measure the 
total pension liability was 2.16% (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond Municipal Bond Index), as of September 30, 2021.  
The related discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 2.21% (Bond Buyer General Obligation 20-Bond 
Municipal Bond Index), as of September 30, 2020. 
 
4)   Sensitivity Analysis  
 
 The following presents the System’s proportionate share of the net pension liability of the HIS as of September 30, 2021 and 
2020, calculated using the discount rate of 2.16% for 2021 and 2.21% for 2020, as well as what the HIS’s net pension liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the 
current rate. 
 

Current
1% Discount 1%

Fiscal year ending Decrease Rate Increase
September 30: 1.16% 2.16% 3.16%

2021 $ 10,537     $ 9,115  $ 7,949  

Current
1% Discount 1%

Fiscal year ending Decrease Rate Increase
September 30: 1.21% 2.21% 3.21%

2020 $ 10,239     $ 8,857  $ 7,727  
 

 
Summary of Retirement Plans 
 

Net pension liabilities are liquidated in the specific fund to which the liability is directly associated.  This fiscal year the 
System’s aggregate amount of net pension liability is $14,308; deferred outflows of resources for pension is $9,085; deferred 
inflows of resources for pension is $18,497; and pension expense is $1,400.  For fiscal year 2020, the System’s aggregate 
amount of net pension liability was $37,038; deferred outflows of resources for pension was $11,430; deferred inflows of 
resources for pension was $522; and pension expense was $7,083. 
  
Note 10 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension 

 
The Public Utilities System participates in the Manatee County Board of County Commissioners’ single-employer defined 

benefit healthcare plan (the “plan”).  The System has recognized an other postemployment benefits (OPEB) liability of $4,119 
and $3,994, deferred outflows of $406 and $376 and deferred inflows of $840 and $949 related to its participation in the plan 
as of September 30, 2021 and 2020, respectively.  For full disclosure of the plan description and funding status, as well as 
actuarial methods and assumptions, refer to Note 20 in the Manatee County’s ACFR for the fiscal year ended September 30, 
2021. 
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Note 10 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension - Continued 
 
Total OPEB Liability  
 
 The System’s total OPEB liability was measured as of September 30, 2021 and September 30, 2020 was determined by an 
actuarial valuation as of October 1, 2020 using the entry age normal cost method.  The liabilities are rolled forward from the 
actuarial valuation date to the corresponding measurement dates.  Liabilities are adjusted for passage of time by adding 
normal cost minus benefit payments all adjusted with interest. 
 
Changes in the Total OPEB Liability  
 

2021 2020

Beginning Balance, October 1 $     3,994 $     2,918 

Changes for the year:

  Service cost        165        167 

  Interest          94        123 

  Differences between expected and actual experience             -       (163)

  Changes of assumptions or other inputs          84     1,156 

  Benefit payments       (218)       (207)

    Net changes        125     1,076 

Ending Balance, September 30 $     4,119 $     3,994 

Total OPEB Liability

 
 Changes of assumptions or other inputs reflect a change in the discount rate from 2.75 percent in 2019 to 2.41 percent 
in 2020 to 2.19 percent in 2021. 
 
 Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate – The following presents the total OPEB liability of the 
System using the discount rate of 2.19% for fiscal year 2021 and 2.41% for fiscal year 2020, as well as what the System’s total 
OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage point 
higher than the current discount rate. 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:

2021 $ 4,535 $ 4,119  $ 3,753

2020 $ 4,400 $ 3,994  $ 3,639

Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

1.41% 2.41% 3.41%

Current 
Discount

Rate
2.19%

1%
Increase

3.19%

1%
Decrease

1.19%

Current 
1%

 
 
 Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the medical cost trend rates – The following presents the total OPEB 
liability of the System using the medical cost trend rate of 4.00% for fiscal year 2021 and fiscal year 2020, as well as what the 
System’s total OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rate that is one percentage point lower 
or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate. 
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Note 10 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension - Continued 
 
Total OPEB Liability - Continued  
 

Fiscal Year Ending
September 30:

2021 $ 3,547 $ 4,119  $ 4,835

2020 $ 3,484 $ 3,994  $ 4,630

3.00% 4.00% 5.00%

Current 
1% Discount 1%

Decrease Rate Increase

Current 

1% Cost Trend 1%
Medical 

Decrease Rate Increase
3.00% 4.00% 5.00%

 
 
OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB  
 

For the year ended September 30, 2021, the System recognized OPEB expense of $(232).  At September 30,  
2021, the System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the 
following sources: 
 

Differences between expected and actual
  experience $ $ (298)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs         406 (542)
    Total $         406 $ (840)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Of Resources Of Resources

 
 
Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 

recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 

Year Ending September 30: of Resources of Resources

2022 $ 55 $ (109) (54)
2023 55 (109) (54)
2024 55 (109) (54)
2025 55 (109) (54)
2026 54 (109) (55)

Thereafter 132 (295) (163)
$ 406 $ (840) $ (434)$

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Total

 
 

For the year ended September 30, 2020, the System recognized OPEB expense of $1,884.  At September 30, 2020, the 
System reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following 
sources: 

Differences between expected and actual
  experience $            -   $ (340)
Changes of assumptions or other inputs         376 (609)
    Total $         376 $ (949)

Of Resources Of Resources
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
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Note 10 Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension - Continued 
 
OPEB Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB - Continued 
 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows. 
 

Year Ending September 30: of Resources of Resources

2021 $ 47 $ (109) $ (62)
2022 47 (109) (62)
2023 47 (109) (62)
2024 47 (109) (62)
2025 47 (109) (62)

Thereafter 141 (404) (263)
$ 376 $ (949) $ (573)

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
Total

 
 
Note 11 Commitments and Contingencies 
 
 Litigation - Manatee County Public Utilities System is involved in certain litigation, as a defendant or plaintiff, arising in the 
ordinary course of operations.  In the opinion of management and legal counsel the range of potential recoveries or liabilities 
will not materially affect the financial position of the System. 

 Grant Programs - Manatee County Public Utilities System participates in a number of federal and state grant programs for 
capital projects.  This funding is subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. 

 Contract Commitments - Open construction contracts totaled approximately $65,090 and $124,837 at September 30, 2021 
and 2020, respectively.  
 
 Federal and State Disaster Assistance - On March 13, 2020, a presidential emergency was declared for all states, tribes, 
territories, and the District of Columbia due to the ongoing Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19) pandemic. The declaration 
made federal disaster assistance available through the Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security (CARES) Act to the State 
of Florida to supplement the County’s local recovery efforts. As of September 30, 2020, any expenses related to the CARES Act 
are paid out of Manatee County’s Federal and State Grants Fund. Manatee County has submitted costs for the full award of 
State and Federal Assistance through the CARES Act as of September 30, 2021. 
 
 On March 11, 2021, the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) was signed into law.  ARPA provides additional relief from the 
federal government in response to the COVID-19 pandemic.  ARPA includes local fiscal recovery funds to further supplement 
local governments in the public health response and economic recovery from COVID-19. As of September 30, 2021, any 
expenses related to the ARPA Act are paid out of Manatee County’s Federal and State Grants Fund. 
 
Note 12 Recognition of Closure and Post Closure Cost  

 State and federal laws require final cover and closure as well as post closure care of Manatee County’s Lena Road Landfill.  
Estimates include final cover, anticipated costs of equipment and facilities constructed near or after closure and thirty years of 
monitoring and maintenance costs subsequent to closing.  Closure cost estimates are subject to regulatory review. 
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Manatee County Public Utilities System 
Notes to Financial Statements 
September 30, 2021 and 2020 

(Amounts expressed in thousands) 
 
Note 12 Recognition of Closure and Post Closure Cost – Continued 
 
 The following schedule reflects the activity on Landfill closure as of September 30: 
 

2021 2020

Closure Costs (286 acres) $ 61,474  $ 39,129  
Post Closure Costs (316 acres) 20,357  13,920  
   Current Closure Cost Estimate $ 81,831  $ 53,049  

Remaining Life 20        21         

Landfill Capacity Used (%) 59.13% 57.33%

Closure/Post Closure Liability $ 49,178  $ 30,975  

Current Year Closure/Post Closure Cost $ 18,203  $ 1,447    

Landfill Cash Escrow Account $ 37,879  $ 37,742  
 

 
 The closure/post closure liability for the landfill capacity that has been used is net, for both years reported above, of closure 
payments paid in prior years.  Closure costs of a permanently closed 30-acre section of Lena Road amounting to $2,132 are 
not reflected in any of the above totals. 
  
 The landfill is required, by state and federal law and regulations, to meet certain financial assurance requirements by making 
annual contributions and or meeting certain financial ratio tests.  The landfill is in compliance with these requirements at 
September 30, 2021 and 2020, with cash and investments of $37,879 and $37,742 respectively, held for these purposes. In 
the event closure escrows and interest earnings prove inadequate due to inflation, changes in technology or additional 
closure/post closure care requirements, these costs may need to be covered by charges to future landfill users. 
 
Note 13 Loss Contingency 

 On August 5, 2010, Manatee County entered into a project participation agreement with the Department of the Army Corps 
of Engineers (ACOE) for construction of the Cedar Hammock (Wares Creek) flood damage reduction project.  Upon final 
closeout of this project by the ACOE, there is a probable liability of $0 to $3.7 million related to the valuation of the land 
acquisition used by the County for a portion of its local share of the project costs.  At September 30, 2021, no amount was 
accrued as it could not be reasonably estimated.  
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Total OPEB Liability
2021 2020 2019 2018 (1)

Service cost $ 165       $ 167       $ 82          $ 90          
Interest 94         123       96          96          
Changes of benefit terms -        -        -         -         
Difference between expected and 
  actual experience -        (163)      -         (174)       
Changes of assumptions or other inputs 84         1,156    299        (127)       
Benefit payments (218)      (207)      (131)       (1,138)    
Net change in total OPEB liability $ 125       $ 1,076    $ 346        $ (1,253)    
Total OPEB liability - beginning 3,994    2,918    2,572     3,825     
Total OPEB liability - ending $ 4,119    $ 3,994    $ 2,918     $ 2,572     

Covered-employee payroll $ 21,724   $ 18,299   $ 16,660   $ 16,144   

Total OPEB liability as a percentage of
  covered-employee payroll 18.96% 21.83% 17.52% 15.93%

(1) Initial year of plan disclosure due to the implementation of GASB 75. No prior data available.

Notes to Schedule:

     each period. The following are the discount rates used in each period:

2021 2.19%
2020 2.41%
2019 2.75%
2018 3.83%
2017 3.50%

     In fiscal year 2020, the medical trend rate was updated to the latest model released by the SOA 
       and excludes the impact of the Cadillac Tax and the decrement assumptions were updated based 
       on FRS 2019 experience study.

Trust.  The defined benefit OPEB plan provided is not administered through a trust that meets the criteria of GASB
     Statement 75, paragraph 4.  

Benefit changes. There have been no changes to the benefit terms.

Changes of assumptions . Changes of assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects of changes 

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Required Supplementary Information for the Current Year and Preceding Three Years

Schedule of Changes in Total Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB) Other Than Pension Liability
and Other Related Ratios

(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015   2014(1)

System's proportion of the net pension
     liability (asset) 0.068749440% 0.065019110% 0.063985726% 0.065965130% 0.655907980% 0.065555013% 0.064867039% 0.062546846%
System's proportionate share of the net
     pension liability (asset) $ 5,193             $ 28,181           $ 22,036           $ 19,869           $ 19,401           $ 16,553           $ 8,379             $ 3,816             
System's covered payroll(2) $ 22,444           $ 21,326           $ 20,084           $ 20,011           $ 19,342           $ 18,800           $ 18,093           $ 17,261           

System's proportionate share of the net
     pension liability (asset) as a percentage
     of its covered payroll 23.14% 132.14% 109.72% 99.29% 100.31% 88.05% 46.31% 22.11%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
     percentage of the total pension liability 96.40% 78.85% 82.61% 84.26% 83.89% 84.88% 92.00% 96.09%

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015   2014(1)

System's proportion of the net pension
     liability (asset) 0.074305770% 0.072541763% 0.070967357% 0.071286433% 0.070409248% 0.070631591% 0.068945189% 0.066384525%
System's proportionate share of the net
     pension liability (asset) $ 9,115             $ 8,857             $ 7,940             $ 7,545             $ 7,529             $ 8,232             $ 7,031             $ 6,207             
System's covered payroll(2) $ 26,287           $ 25,190           $ 23,658           $ 23,157           $ 22,110           $ 21,335           $ 20,330           $ 19,233           

System's proportionate share of the net
     pension liability (asset) as a percentage
     of its covered payroll 34.67% 35.16% 33.56% 32.58% 34.05% 38.58% 34.58% 32.27%

Plan fiduciary net position as a 
     percentage of the total pension liability 3.56% 3.00% 2.63% 2.15% 1.64% 0.97% 0.50% 0.99%

(1)  Information is not available for years prior to 2014.
(2)  Covered payroll for the FRS pension plan and the HIS pension plan may differ for Investment plan participant employees.
(3)  The discount rates used for the FRS Plan for fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are 6.80%, 6.80%, 6.90%, 7.00%, 7.10%, 7.60%, 7.65%, and 
      7.65%, respectively.  The discount rates used for the HIS Program for fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are 2.16%, 2.21%, 3.50%, 3.87%, 
     3.58%, 2.85%, 3.80%, and 4.29%, respectively.  
(4)  The investment rate of return used for the FRS Plan for fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are 6.80%, 6.80%, 6.90%, 7.00%, 7.10%, 7.60%, 
      7.65%, and 7.65%, respectively.  The investment rate of return used for the HIS Program for fiscal years 2021, 2020, 2019, 2018, 2017, 2016, 2015, and 2014 are 2.16%, 
      2.21%, 3.50%, 3.87%, 3.58%, 2.85%, 3.80%, and 4.29%, respectively.  

HIS Pension Plan

FRS Pension Plan

(Amounts expressed in thousands)
for the FRS and HIS Pension Plans

June 30,

June 30,

Schedule of the System's Proportionate Share of The Net Pension Liability
Required Supplementary Information for the Current and Seven Preceding Years

Manatee County Public Utilities System
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Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016   2015(1)

Contractually required contribution $ 2,690   $ 2,292   $ 2,027   $ 1,896   $ 1,726     $ 1,724     $ 1,583   

Contributions in relation to the
  contractually required contribution (2,690)  (2,292)  (2,027)  (1,896)  (1,726)    (1,724)    (1,583)  
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -       $ -       $ -       $ -       $ -         $ -         $ -       

System's covered payroll(2) $ 22,438 $ 21,772 $ 20,361 $ 19,859 $ 19,659   $ 19,663   $ 18,231 

Contributions as a percentage of 
   covered payroll 11.99% 10.53% 9.96% 9.55% 8.78% 8.77% 8.68%

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016   2015(1)

Contractually required contribution $ 437      $ 426      $ 400      $ 387      $ 379        $ 378        $ 286      

Contributions in relation to the
  contractually required contribution (437)     (426)     (400)     (387)     (379)       (378)       (286)     
Contribution deficiency (excess) $ -       $ -       $ -       $ -       $ -         $ -         $ -       

System's covered payroll(2) $ 26,288 $ 25,688 $ 24,052 $ 23,109 $ 22,514   $ 22,383   $ 20,516 

Contributions as a percentage of 
   covered payroll 1.66% 1.66% 1.66% 1.67% 1.68% 1.69% 1.39%

(1)  Information is not available for years prior to 2015.

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

(2)  Covered payroll for the FRS pension plan and the HIS pension plan may differ for Investment plan participant employees.

FRS Pension Plan

HIS Pension Plan

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Required Supplementary Information for the Current and Six Preceding Years

Schedule of the System's Contributions to the FRS and HIS Pension Plans
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Revenue Revenue Refunding
Refunding & Improvement
Series 2011 Series 2015

Original authorization $ 22,650 $ 91,485
Unissued -           -                  
Issued 22,650 91,485
Retirements 17,250     17,210            
Refunded -           -                  
Balance outstanding $ 5,400 $ 74,275

Date of issue December 14, 2011 April 22, 2015   
Principal payment date October 1 October 1
Interest payment dates April-October April-October
Denominations (amounts not rounded) $5,000 $5,000

Interest rates 5.00% Maturity 5.00% Maturity
2022-2024 2022-2030

3.00% Maturity
2031
5.00% Maturity
2032-2034
4.00% Maturity
2035-2040

Effective interest cost rate 2.6571% 3.1149%

Call feature N/A 2025-Maturity 100

Paying agent Bank of New York
Jacksonville, FL Orlando, FL 

Hancock Bank

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Revenue Bond Issues - Description

September 30, 2021
(Amounts expressed in thousands)
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Revenue Revenue

Refunding Improvement

Series 2017 Series 2018

Original authorization $ 55,075 $ 74,695

Unissued -         -         

Issued 55,075 74,695

Retirements 2,645     -         

Refunded -         -         

Balance outstanding $ 52,430 $ 74,695

Date of issue December 28, 2017   September 20, 2018

Principal payment date October 1 October 1

Interest payment dates April-October April-October

Denominations (amounts not rounded) $5,000 $5,000

Interest rates 5.00% Maturity 5.00% Maturity

2022-2033 2022-2028

4.00% Maturity 3.00% Maturity

2034-2036 2029

4.00% Maturity

2030

3.00% Maturity

2031

3.125% Maturity

2032

3.250% Maturity

2033

3.375% Maturity

2034

3.50% Maturity

2035-2038

3.625% Maturity

2039-2041

3.50% Maturity
2042-2046
3.625% Maturity

2047-2049

Effective interest cost rate 2.4327% 3.4945%

Call feature 2027-Maturity 100 2028-Maturity 100

Paying agent Hancock Whitney Bank
New York, NY Baton Rouge, LA

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

US Bank

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Revenue Bond Issues - Description

September 30, 2021
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Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2022 $ -      $ 135 $ 135 $ -      $ 1,578 $ 1,578
2023 2,635 204 2,839 -      3,156 3,156
2024 2,765 69       2,834 -      3,156 3,156
2025 -      -      -      1,450   3,119 4,569
2026 -      -      -      1,605   3,043 4,648
2027 -      -      -      1,780   2,958 4,738
2028 -      -      -      1,990   2,864 4,854
2029 -      -      -      2,205   2,759 4,964
2030 -      -      -      2,450   2,643 5,093
2031 -      -      -      2,700   2,541 5,241
2032 -      -      -      2,925   2,427 5,352
2033 -      -      -      3,215   2,274 5,489
2034 -      -      -      3,535   2,105 5,640
2035 -      -      -      3,865   1,940 5,805
2036 -      -      -      4,195   1,778 5,973
2037 -      -      -      9,975   1,495 11,470
2038 -      -      -      10,375 1,088 11,463
2039 -      -      -      10,790 665 11,455
2040 -      -      -      11,220 224 11,444

$ 5,400 $ 408 $ 5,808 $ 74,275 $ 41,813 $ 116,088

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements

September 30, 2021
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Public Utilities System Revenue Refunding & Improvement Bonds

$22,650 $91,485
Series 2011 Bonds Series 2015 Bonds

Public Utilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds

-35-



Fiscal
Year Principal Interest Total Principal Interest Total
2022 $ -      $ 1,240 $ 1,240 $ -      $ 1,387    $ 1,387
2023 2,770 2,410 5,180 1,590   2,734    4,324
2024 2,900 2,268 5,168 1,670   2,653    4,323
2025 3,045  2,120 5,165 1,750   2,567    4,317
2026 3,085  1,966 5,051 1,840   2,478    4,318
2027 3,240  1,808 5,048 1,930   2,383    4,313
2028 3,400  1,642 5,042 2,025   2,285    4,310
2029 3,575  1,468 5,043 2,130   2,202    4,332
2030 3,755  1,284 5,039 2,195   2,126    4,321
2031 3,945  1,092 5,037 2,280   2,048    4,328
2032 4,135  890 5,025 2,350   1,977    4,327
2033 4,345  678 5,023 2,420   1,901    4,321
2034 4,560  478 5,038 2,500   1,820    4,320
2035 4,745  292 5,037 2,585   1,732    4,317
2036 4,930  99       5,029 2,675   1,640    4,315
2037 -      -      -      2,770   1,545    4,315
2038 -      -      -      2,865   1,446    4,311
2039 -      -      -      2,965   1,342    4,307
2040 -      -      -      3,075   1,233    4,308
2041 -      -      -      3,185   1,119    4,304
2042 -      -      -      3,300   1,004    4,304
2043 -      -      -      3,415   886       4,301
2044 -      -      -      3,535   765       4,300
2045 -      -      -      3,660   639       4,299
2046 -      -      -      3,790   508       4,298
2047 -      -      -      3,920   371       4,291
2048 -      -      -      4,065   226       4,291
2049 -      -      -      4,210   76         4,286

$ 52,430 $ 19,735 $ 72,165 $ 74,695 $ 43,093 $ 117,788

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Schedule of Debt Service Requirements

September 30, 2021
(Amounts expressed in thousands)

Public Utilities System Revenue Refunding Bonds Public Utilities System Revenue Improvement Bonds

$55,075 $74,695
Series 2017 Bonds Series 2018 Bonds
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2021 2020
Operating revenues:
   Water and sewer $ 151,213  $ 151,000  
   Stormwater 30           69           
   Solid waste 49,168    48,134    
Interest earned:
   Water and sewer 1,276      7,034      
   Stormwater 44           164         
   Solid waste 201         1,045      
Less interest not considered revenue for debt coverage:
   Interest earned on construction trust funds (132)        (1,191)     
Add revenue available for debt service coverage
   not included as operating revenues in financial statements:
      Operating grants 276         1,233      

Total revenues available for debt service coverage 202,076  207,488  
Add federal direct payments -          1,776      
Less operating expenses (excluding depreciation
   and amortization) (158,870)  (142,564)  

Net revenues available for debt service $ 43,206    $ 66,700    

Debt service requirement $ 18,044    $ 22,728    

Debt service coverage 2.39x 2.93x

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Schedules of Debt Service Coverage

September 30, 2021 and 2020
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2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
Operating Revenues:
   Water sales $ 62,673   $ 61,555   $ 57,194   $ 55,347   $ 53,557   
   Wastewater treatment charges 87,304   87,825   81,762   79,324   75,293   
   Solid waste charges 48,848   47,952   46,621   45,034   43,587   
   Miscellaneous 1,862     3,104     12,417   2,671     2,471     
   Federal direct payment (FDP) -         1,776     1,770     1,763     1,757     
   Interest income (1) 1,389     7,052     9,607     5,072     2,398     
      Total operating revenues 202,076 209,264 209,371 189,211 179,063 

Operating Expenses:
   Water operations 33,493   35,769   33,242   30,400   29,184   
   Sewer operations 62,311   61,513   57,225   51,202   47,864   
   Solid waste operations 56,154   38,042   35,415   43,979   31,741   
   Stormwater operations 6,912     7,240     7,173     6,623     5,759     
      Total operating expenses 158,870 142,564 133,055 132,204 114,548 

Net revenue available for debt service $ 43,206   $ 66,700   $ 76,316   $ 57,007   $ 64,515   

Debt service requirement (2) $ 18,044   $ 22,728   $ 22,817   $ 19,405   $ 17,343   

Coverage ratio of debt service requirement 2.39x 2.93x 3.34x 2.94x 3.72x

(1)  Does not include interest income not available for debt service.
(2)  For fiscal year ended September 30, 2021, the debt service requirements are based on the annual debt service for the Series 2011,
     2015, 2017, and 2018 Public Utilities Systems Bonds.  For fiscal year ended September 30, 2020, the debt service requirements are based on the 
     annual debt service for the Series 2010A, 2010B, 2011, 2015, 2017 and 2018 Public Utilities Systems Bonds.  For fiscal year ended September 30,
     2019, the debt service requirements are based on the annual debt service for the Series 2010A, 2010B, 2010C, 2011, 2015, 2017 and 2018 
     Public Utilities Systems Bonds.  For fiscal year ended September 30, 2018, the debt service requirements are based on the annual debt service
     for the Series 2010A, 2010B, 2010C, 2011 and 2015 Public Utilities Systems Bonds.  For fiscal years ended September 30, 2017, the debt service
     requirements are based on the annual debt service for Series 2010A, 2010B, 2010C, 2010D, 2011 and 2015 Public Utilities Systems Bonds.  For
     fiscal year ended September 30, 2016, the debt service requirements are based on the annual debt service for the Series 2006, 2010A, 2010B, 2010C,
     2010D and 2011 Public Utilities Systems Bonds.

     

      

Fiscal Year Ended September 30

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Five-Year Summary of Historic Operating Data

(Amounts expressed in thousands)

-38-



Manatee County DeSoto County
   Standard Waste    Standard Waste/Construction & Demolition Debris
     Autos $ 5.00/min      In-county $ 42.00/ton
     All other vehicles      Mixed Unsorted Loads $ 84.00/ton
       In-county $ 40.00/ton      Out-of-county $ 84.00/ton
       Out-of-county $ 120.00/ton    Tires 
   Construction & Demolition Debris      In-county $ 200.00/ton
     In-county $ 61.00/ton      Out-of-county $ 400.00/ton
     Out-of-county $ 183.00/ton
   Tires Hillsborough County 
     In-county $ 86.00/ton    Standard Waste/Construction & Demolition Debris
     Out-of-county $ 258.00/ton      In-county $ 39.11-62.38/ton

     Out-of-county N/A
Lee County    Processable $ 61.54-73.22/ton
   Standard Waste    Tires $ 130.00/ton
     In-county $ 67.45/ton
     In-county gate fee $ 50.20/ton Pinellas County
     Out-of-county N/A    Standard Waste/Construction & Demolition Debris
   Construction & Demolition Debris      Passenger Car $ 4.00 per load
     In-county $ 48.40/ton      Pickup Trucks $ 11.00 per load
     Out-of-county N/A      In-county $ 42.15/ton
   Tires  $ 120.00/ton      Out-of-county $ N/A
   Off Road Tires $ 120.00/ton    Tires $ 110.00/ton

Sarasota County Polk County
   Standard Waste    Standard Waste/Construction & Demolition Debris
     In-county $ 57.56/ton      In-county $ 36.50/ton
     Out-of-county N/A      Out-of-county N/A
   Construction & Demolition Debris    Tires 
     In-county $ 54.74/ton      In-county $ 300.00/ton
     Out-of-county N/A      Out-of-county N/A
   Tires $ 158.60/ton

Charlotte County 
   Standard Waste/Construction & Demolition Debris
     In-county $ 38.43/ton
     Out-of-county $ 76.85/ton
   Tires 
     In-county $ 122.76/ton
     Out-of-county $ 138.77/ton

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Solid Waste Tipping Fee Comparison

(as of September 30, 2021)

Landfill Tipping Fees
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Year Water Wastewater

2021 135,233 115,336
2020 130,674 111,555
2019 126,764 108,410
2018 123,350 105,470
2017 119,872 102,646

6,000 10,000 6,000 10,000 6,000 10,000

Manatee County $ 23.13  $ 34.53   $ 52.72    $ 72.84   $ 75.85    $ 107.37 
Charlotte County 57.99  84.87   74.19    96.71   132.18  181.58 
DeSoto County 68.00  101.16 61.30    85.30   129.30  186.46 
Hillsborough County 38.79  59.75   46.25    56.41   85.04    116.16 
Lee County 32.21  48.57   55.55    73.10   87.76    121.67 
Pinellas County 37.58  58.10   52.26    76.18   89.84    134.28 
Polk County 23.65  28.91   75.02    81.50   98.67    110.41 
Sarasota County 33.76  51.14   68.45    102.29 102.21  153.43 
City of Tampa 21.79  39.01   28.00    28.00   49.79    67.01   

Source: Manatee County
(1)  Based on 6,000/10,000 gallons/month     

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Historic Growth of Water and Wastewater Divisions Services

Number of Meters
(as of September 30, 2021)

Water Wastewater Total

Single-Family Residential Water and Wastewater Bills
in Manatee County and Surrounding Areas

(as of September 30, 2021) (1)
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Description 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Charges for Services $ 172,437   $ 179,705   $ 185,577   $ 197,332    $ 198,825   
Miscellaneous Revenues & Interest Income (1) 4,875       6,815       20,391     8,809        2,913       
Federal Direct Payments 1,757       1,763       1,770       1,776        -           

Total Gross Revenues 179,069   188,283   207,738   207,917    201,738   

Total Operating Expenses (2) 114,548   132,204   133,055   142,564    158,870   

Net Revenue 64,521     56,079     74,683     65,353      42,868     
Net Revenue Ratio 36.03% 29.78% 35.95% 31.43% 21.25%

Outstanding Bonds:
   Annual Debt Service Requirement 17,343     19,405     22,817     22,728      18,044     
   Calculated Coverage 3.72         2.89         3.27         2.88          2.38         
   Required Coverage 1.15         1.15         1.15         1.15          1.15         

Net Available for Other Required Transfers (3) 47,178     36,674     51,866     42,625      24,824     

Other Required Transfers:
     Debt Service Reserve Account (4) -             -             -             -              -             

Net Available for Capital Improvement Fund
  Transfer (5) 47,178     36,674     51,866     42,625      24,824     
System Facility Investment Fees 17,036     19,441     21,712     26,167      36,734     

Total Available for Other System Purposes $ 64,214     $ 56,115     $ 73,578     $ 68,792      $ 61,558     

(1)  Amounts shown do not include interest income earned on balances in the restricted construction or facility investment fee fund(s) (earnings restricted to such account 
      by resolution or law), or any unrealized gain or loss on the fair market adjustment of investments (to recognize realized earnings).

(4)  The debt service reserve account on the outstanding bonds is secured by a reserve account credit facility substitute equal to the applicable debt service reserve requirement for 
      each series of outstanding bonds; therefore, no additional required transfers are reflected during the historical period.
(5)  Pursuant to the Resolution, all available revenue after payment of operating expenses, satisfies the annual debt service requirement on all bonds.  Required transfers shall be 
      deposited into the capital improvement fund for the benefit of the Public Utilities System.  Generally, this account is used by the County to fund ongoing capital expenditures that  
      are not funded by Public Utilities System's debt and other funding obligations of the Public Utilities System.

Manatee County Public Utilities System
Historical Operating Results of System

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Summary of Historical System Operating Results and Debt Coverage

(2)  Amounts shown do not include depreciation or amortization expenses pursuant to the Resolution.

Historical Fiscal Year Ended September 30

(3)  Amount represents the available net revenue after the payment of the annual debt service requirement.  
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL  
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON  
AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE  
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 
 
 
Honorable Members of the 
Board of County Commissioners 
Manatee County, Florida 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the 
Manatee County, Florida Public Utilities System (the “System”), as of and for the year ended 
September 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
the System’s financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2022. 
 
Internal Control over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the System’s internal 
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial 
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s 
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the System’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a 
material misstatement of the System’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and 
corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, 
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit 
attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the System's financial statements are free 
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and 
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The 
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be 
reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
System’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the System’s internal control and 
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
Sincerely,  
 

 
Carr, Riggs, & Ingram, LLC 
 
Bradenton, Florida 
March 24, 2022 
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